
 

 

1 

 

Becker County Planning Commission  1 

February 22nd, 2023 2 

 3 

Members Present: Chairman Dave Blomseth, Tom Disse, Kohl Skalin, Tommy Ailie, 4 

County Commissioner Erica Jepson, County Commissioner John Okeson, Harvey Aho, 5 

Mary Seaberg, Nick Bowers, and Zoning Director Kyle Vareberg. Members Absent: 6 

Jeff Moritz and Craig Hall 7 

  8 

Chairman Dave Blomseth called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:09 pm. 9 

Introductions were given. Becker County Zoning Technician Nicole Hultin recorded the 10 

minutes. 11 

 12 

Kohl Skalin made a motion to approve the minutes from the December 14th, 2023, 13 

meeting. Aho second. All members in favor. Motion carried.  14 

 15 

Chairman Dave Blomseth explained the protocol for the meeting and stated that the 16 

recommendations of the Planning Commission would be forwarded to the County Board 17 

of Commissioners for final action.  18 

 19 

 20 

Old Business: 21 

 22 

1. APPLICANT: Richard & Dana Laine 20781 Co Rd 117 Osage, MN 56570 23 

Project Location: 20781 Co Rd 117 Osage, MN 56570 LEGAL LAND 24 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 33.0118.000 Section 10 Township 139 25 

Range 038; LOT 1 & SW1/4 OF NW1/4; APPLICATION AND 26 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request an Amendment to remove all 27 

stipulations from Conditional Use Permit Recorded Document number 28 

680083, to allow for an expansion for a total of twenty-four (24) RV sites and 29 

twenty-one (21) mooring spaces. 30 

 31 

 32 

Kyle Vareberg clarified that the request to remove stipulations and the request for 33 

expansion are two separate requests. 34 

 35 

Richard Laine presented the application and explained the reasons for wanting 36 

stipulations removed.  37 

 38 

Skalin asked Vareberg what stipulations were initially recommended by the Planning 39 

Commission. 40 

 41 

Vareberg stated that the Planning Commission never recommended any stipulations.  42 

 43 

Roger Ball, neighbor, spoke against the application. 44 

 45 



 

 

2 

 

Rick Lien, neighbor, spoke against the application and discussed the speed of traffic on 46 

the road. 47 

 48 

Doug Lesage with Bambi’s Resort spoke in favor of the application. 49 

 50 

Testimony closed. 51 

 52 

All letters regarding this application were received and read by the Planning Commission 53 

Members before the meeting and are entered below: 54 

 55 

 56 
 57 

 58 

 59 

 60 

 61 
 62 

 63 

 64 

 65 

 66 
 67 

 68 



 

 

3 

 

 69 

 70 

 71 



 

 

4 

 

 72 



 

 

5 

 

 73 
 74 

 75 

 76 

 77 



 

 

6 

 

 78 

 79 
 80 

 81 

 82 

 83 



 

 

7 

 

 84 
 85 

 86 

 87 

 88 

 89 
 90 

 91 

 92 

 93 



 

 

8 

 

 94 

 95 
 96 

 97 

 98 

 99 



 

 

9 

 

 100 

 101 
 102 

 103 

 104 

 105 



 

 

10 

 

 106 
 107 

 108 

 109 

 110 

 111 
 112 

 113 

 114 

 115 



 

 

11 

 

 116 
 117 

 118 

 119 

 120 



 

 

12 

 

 121 

 122 
 123 

 124 

 125 

 126 



 

 

13 

 

 127 
 128 

 129 

 130 

 131 



 

 

14 

 

 132 

 133 
 134 

 135 

 136 

 137 



 

 

15 

 

 138 
 139 

 140 

 141 

 142 

 143 
 144 

 145 

 146 

 147 

 148 
 149 

 150 

 151 

 152 



 

 

16 

 

 153 
 154 

 155 

 156 

 157 

 158 
 159 

 160 

Vareberg shared the legal opinion he received regarding the history of the application, 161 

specifically regarding stipulation numbers five (5) and six (6). The legal opinion received 162 

from the County Attorney is that this request is completely legal because it is not a new 163 

application. Regardless, Vareberg suggests not acting on stipulation numbers five (5) and 164 

(6) since the County Board voted to deny removal of those stipulations June 21, 2022. 165 

 166 

Vareberg stated that the trees required in number five (5) are already in place. 167 

 168 

Ailie asked Laine if the road were to become a one-way, would he be eliminating 169 

proposed site sixteen (16). 170 

 171 

Laine said yes, if the road is allowed. 172 

 173 

Vareberg said that stipulation had been amended, but this request is to completely remove 174 

the stipulation. 175 



 

 

17 

 

 176 

Skalin asked if they allow fish houses to be used as campers. 177 

 178 

Laine said they did allow an ice castle, which the campers then took South for the winter. 179 

 180 

Disse asked if they have contracts with the campers. 181 

 182 

Laine stated yes, they do. 183 

 184 

Vareberg asked if this was the first year being occupied. 185 

 186 

Laine said yes. 187 

 188 

Vareberg noted that all stipulations are in place, and that the only thing that isn’t there is 189 

the dock. 190 

 191 

Laine commented that the dock was approved by the DNR and will be going in this 192 

spring. 193 

 194 

Jepson commented that she has traveled that road many times throughout the summer, 195 

and every time she drove by, she thought it looked like a well-kept campground. That it 196 

looked very nice, and she has no concerns. She stated that the road doesn’t seem to be 197 

that fast of a speed or a very busy road. She said she has driven it at many different hours 198 

of the day and doesn’t recall meeting other vehicles on the road. 199 

 200 

Mary asked about transient versus seasonal.  201 

 202 

Vareberg stated that it’s typically up to the resort owners if they want to allow for 203 

transient based on demand. 204 

 205 

Skalin stated that none of these restrictions make any sense to him. He stated that he 206 

doesn’t know of any other resorts with this level of restrictions. He said that he disagrees 207 

with all the stipulations.  208 

 209 

Seaberg agreed. 210 

 211 

 212 

 213 

 214 

MOTION: Skalin motioned to approve all twenty-four (24) sites and removal 215 

of all stipulations except for stipulation numbers (5) and (6) based on the 216 

following findings: 217 

 218 



 

 

18 

 

 219 

 220 



 

 

19 

 

 221 

 222 



 

 

20 

 

 223 
 224 

Aho Second. Roll Call; Ailie, Disse, Skalin, Blomseth, Seaberg, Aho and 225 

Bowers in favor. Motion Carried. 226 

 227 

 228 

 229 

New Business: 230 

 231 

1. APPLICANT: Deanna L Noel 40358 Little Toad Rd Frazee, MN 56544 232 

Project Location: 40358 Little Toad Rd Frazee, MN 56544 LEGAL LAND 233 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 15.0233.000 Section 24 Township 139 234 

Range 039; 24-139-039 GOVT LOT 2 LESS PLAT GORANSON BCH AKA 235 

9.43 AC & LESS .50 AC TO STATE & EX 27 AC FOR 15.0236.000 & EX 236 

1.65 AC FOR 15.0232.000 & EX 1.42 AC FOR 15.0234.000 & EX ROADS 237 

APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a Change 238 

of Zone from Agricultural to Residential for proposed Tract B. 239 

 240 

 241 

Deanna Noel presented the application. 242 

 243 

There was no one to speak for or against this application. 244 

 245 

Testimony closed. 246 

 247 

Vareberg commented that the county was essentially blanket zoned, and at that time, 248 

nothing was really zoned residential unless it was a good sized neighborhood. 249 

 250 

There was discussion on what would be considered spot zoning and the need for a clearer 251 

definition. 252 

 253 

Vareberg stated that lot size is a big factor when determining this. 254 

 255 



 

 

21 

 

Vareberg also stated that he will look into a legal opinion on what is considered to be 256 

“spot zoning.” 257 

 258 

Ailie stated that there are smaller lots in this area. 259 

 260 

Seaberg asked if the request meets the guidelines of the ordinance.  261 

 262 

Vareberg said the proposed lot would if the Change of Zone is granted. 263 

 264 

 265 

 266 

MOTION: Seaberg motioned to approve the application; Skalin second. Roll 267 

Call; Ailie, Disse, Skalin, Blomseth, Seaberg, Aho and Bowers in favor. 268 

Motion carried. 269 

 270 

 271 

 272 

 273 

Since there was no further business to come before the Board, Skalin made a motion 274 

to adjourn. Ailie second. All in favor. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 275 

7:17 pm.  276 

 277 

 278 

________________________________                ________________________________ 279 

David Blomseth, Chairman    Jeff Moritz, Secretary 280 

 281 

ATTEST 282 

 283 

      _______________________________________ 284 

          Kyle Vareberg, Zoning Administrator  285 


